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fl.-Was any thing said by the Native Officers when 

the new-pattern turban arrived at Pallamcottah 7 

A.-I heard nothing. 

Q.-Do you know when the Facqueer Emaum Ally. 

left Pallamcottah ? 

A.-lIe went away before the disturbance at Pal-
lameottah. 

(J.-",There did he go to 1 

A.-He said he was going to Travaneo)'e. 

Q.-Did he say himself he was going to Travancore 1 

A.-The people who saw him on the road, told me 

that he said he was going to Travancore. 

Q.-Were there many Facqueers in the Fortl 

A.-J don't know. 

Q.-Whose house did the Faequeers go to in the Fort 1 

A.-To Sheik Hyder's. 

Q.-What was the general conduct of Subadar Sheik 

Hydcr to the Corps '! 

A.-He called himseh Commandant, and directed 

the rest of the Battalion to carry reports to him, and 

110t to the Gentlemen of the Battalion. 

Q.-Oid he usc people ill ? 

A.-He settled disputes amongst the Sepoys and 

boys, and always had a number employed about his 

house, in carrying bricks. 

Q.-Did he make trouble with the Corps 1 

• This was a Havildar. who was reduced for insolence to Captain Pepper 
on duty in July, whel. I was absent from the Corps for a few days i and 
turned Facquecr. 
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A.-With those who were employeu about his house. 

Q.-Had he great influence with the Corps1 

A.-He had, and people were afraid to disobey him. 

Q.-Did I authorize him to assume so much com-

mand over the men 1 

A.-I do not know whether Major W clsl} gave him 

such authority. 
Q.-'Vben was it that he began to assume such 

authority? 

.1.-Ahout the time of Major Shepherd-about four 

or five ycars. 

Q.-Did he order himse1f to be called Commandant 

in Major Shepherd's time ~ 

A.-Not then. 

Q.-Did he not order himself to be caBed Com­

mandant of the Fort of PaUameottah ? 

A.-I do not know whether he directed the Sepoys 

to call him-he was always called Commandant, but 

not of the Fort of Pallamcottah. 

Q.-Did not Sheik Hyder call himself Commanding 

Officer of the Fo!'t of Pallamcottah ? 

A.-I never heard him. 

Q.-What was the exclamation in Moors, when the 

green flag was raised 1 

A.-Deen! Deen! Deen! 
Q.-What else did they say? 

A.-Deen Jaga. Kaufi'er Dhagah? 

Q.-When the flag was carried round in procession, 

was it not escorted by d party of the main guard '! 
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A.-One Havildar, one Naigue, and twelve Sepoys, 
escorted it from the Barracks. 

Q.-Who ordered the guard 1 

A.-The IIavildar Major ca~e and ordered the 

IIavildar, the Naigue, and the Sepoys, from the Bar­

racks; but who ordered the Havildar Major I do not 
know. 

Q.-Were any puppet-shows exhibited at the Bar-

racks, heforc the disarming tbe Corps 1 

£1.-Yes, there was at the Darracks. 

Q.-What was represented there 1 

A.-There was a pandall furnished, and a curtaill 

drew up, and shcwed imaRcs of Europ<'ans and Sepoys 

to the people who were present"'. 

Q.-Was there an image there of Major Welsh? 

A.-Yes, of Major 'Welsh, and of other European 

Gentlemen. 

Q.-'Vho paid the expences of this exhibition 1 

A.-The Sepoys were taxed to pay them. 

Q.-Who ordered the tax to be made 1 

A.-Sbeik Hyder. 

Q.-How many brothers of Subadar Sheik Adum 

were in the Battalion '? 

A.-Two of them were in the Battalion . 

. Q.-How many brothers of Noor M'ahomed were in 

tbe Battalion '? 

A.-One; he was a Havildar . 

.. Vide Colonel Dyce's Letter, Appendix, No. IX. 

I 2 
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Q. by the Judge-Advocate-Were those persons the 

brothers of that Sheik Adom who was blown away for 

mutiny at Vellore 1 

..1.-1 heard so. 

Q.-Where was N oor l\fahomed ? 

A.-l have heard that he was at Vellorc. 

Q. by the Prisoner-How did I behave to the Corps? 

A.-Very well. 

Q. by the Court-Did you observe a green flag at the 

M oRque before? 

A.-Yes, some days before. 

Q.-Did you ever observe such a flag before? 

A.-Sheik Hyder hoisted a flag of the same kind 

before he marched into the ~Iahrattalt country with 

General Wellesley; and this was put up in conse­

quence of the old one being worn out. I cannot tell 

whether it was a proper flag, for I do not know the 

customs of the Moormen *. 
Q. by the Court-When the flag was hoisted the first 

time, did the Moormen make the same noise of Decn! 

Deen! J aga! Caufrc nagga? 

..4.-1 was not there . 

.. It will be easily observed how this man pre\'nricated from beginning to 
end. I know he was perfectly acqulIinted with all the trIcks of the con­
.pirators, nnd knew their customs fully; but they nil attacked him, whcn 
they found I had summoned him as an EI'idence, and actually frightened 
him from disclosing half thc truth, as he still apprehends tilcy will su"c~cd 
in the cnd. I had promoted him at once from Havildllr for good conduct 011 

the 19th November, and thought him a brave and steady soldier till now, 

1807. 
He lIccrunc an habitual drunkard, and Wll~ pensioned. 
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Q. by the Court-Was it usual for any flag to be 
carried about in a palankin ? 

A.-I never saw it before in a palankin, but only on 

a brass plate on men's heads. 

Q.-Were you present '" hen the green llag was 
hoisted the last time? 

A.-I was. 

Q. by the Court-Was there any conversation among 

the Moormen when the flag was last hoisted? 

A.-There was, but I do not recollect w1mt. 

Q. by the Cuurt-When the representation was made 

of the puppet-show, what were the images represented 

as doing? 

A.-Men were represented on horseback and on 

foot; persons were engaged on both sides; the Sepoys 

and the Europeans were marching backwards and for­

wards: they appeared to be exercising. 

Q. by the Court-Was the guard which escorted the 

flag armed? 

A.-Yes. 

The Court adjourned till To-morrow, March the 3rd, 

at Ten o'Clock. 
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Tuesday, ~farc/t 3, 1807. 

The Court assembled this day, pursuant to their 

Adjournment. Members present the same as yesterday. 

Captain Clayson, of the 1st Battalion 20th Hegi­

ment Native Infantry, is sworn, to interpret in Hin­

dOlitanee. 

AITW AR SYNG, lst Battalion 31'd Regiment Native 
Infantry, is sworn. 

Q. by the Prisoner-Relate what passed at 11al1am­

cottah after the news of the V cHore mutiny arrived. 

A.-Ten If days before the Vellore mutiny, a green 

flag was hoisted on the Mosque at Pallamcotta!J: 

Major Welsh was then absent; of course it" as hoisted 

without Major Welsh's permission or knowledge; it 

was reported afterwards to the Corps, that a mutiny 

bad happened at V eHore, on account of a new turban 

having been ordered to be worn. After the nCI\ S came 

to Pallarncottah, the green flag was boisted a second 

time, and the Mussulmen called out Deen! Deell! 

Jaga! Kauffw Bagga. It was reported tbat the mutiny 

bad happened on account of the new turhan, and that 

Sheik Adam had distinguished himself in killing the 

Europeans. Sheik Hyder then told the men of the 

Battalion, "tbat the Battalion which had mutinied 

" was a new Battalion, and had done its duty pro~ 

• That is, about ten !lal's before they heard of it, which was the very time 
it took place. 
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" perly; and that their Battalion was an old one, and 

« if they wore the turban (should they be onlered to 

" wear them), they would be unworthy of being Mus­

t< sulmen; and if the European Officers insisted on 

H their wearing them, they were only ten or fifteen, 

it and might be easily dispatched; and they might run 

" off to the Travancore Ilajah; that the V cllore men 

" had not pursued their victory as they ought to have 

" done, for had they pulled up the draw-bridge. tllCY. 

" might have kept it for twelve years, "ith Tippoo's 

" sons in it; that they lost the Fort because th('y were 

"drunk." I overheard Sheik Hyder make use of 

these ('xpressions. After the new turban arrived at 

Pallamcottah, Major 'V clsh told the men that it was 

a good turban, and had bren ordered to be worn in the 

Service. The men refused to wear it, and said that 

they should thereby hecome "soldiers," and lose their 

faith; and that they would rather Jose their Iives­

(by soldiers, they meant that they should become 

European soldiers). Major Welsh then said, that he 

would communicate their refusal to Government * . 
.. A Copy of my Official Repurt to the Adjutant-G(,Il~ral on this subject, 

b subjoined, to ;,bow how artfully Suhadar Sheil. Hyder conducted himself 

before me, when I supposed him the hest Nath-e Sohlier 1 ever knew, and 

treated hiJ1l as such. 

(COPY). 

To the Adjl<tant-Gaural 'if tlte Army, Fort St. George. 

HAVING explained to this Corps the Generlll Order (rescinding' 

tho:,c in force) respecting the new turhan, nrHl Icft it to them to choos!' or 
reject the pattcrn proposed, thcy hn,'c come to n determinatiun to llvall 
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After having refused to wear the turban, the Sepoys 

assembled in large parties together, and came to a 

determination not to wear the turban. I afterwards 

went to Shevlapatoor as one of the guard, to take 

charge of some cloth. Before my departure, I went to 

make my salams to the Major 'VeIsh, who asked me 

the news of the day: I told him to take care of himself, 

as the Battalion was in a state of mutiny: I said, 

.. Were I not sent on command, I would stay and be 

H cut to pieces, rather than aid in the mutiny." 

Q.-Did anyone else besides Sheik Hyder spt!ak of 

Shelk Adam's conduct at VeHore? 

A.-Nutter Sahib., Subadar, and Sheik* MuctOOll, 
Subadar, and Khoodby, J emadar, said, that Sheik Adam 

had behaved properly at Yellorc, and that if it had 

not been for him, they would by this time have been 

themselves of the present indulgence, and to keep their old turban. I find 
on inquiry, that there arc sevela) objections to the new pattern, although 
Dot a man avowed his di.like before authorized by the present Order; and 1 
think it now my (luty to mention the handsome manner ill which the Senior 
Subadar, Sh"i1; Ilyder, came forward, and put on one of the new-patterll 

liJrbans, requesting me to make him up the first, that he might set UP 

example to the Corps. As I supposed thl' cockades had hecn ;Hade of 

leather through an oversight, I thcu proposed to make up those for the 
Corps of horn, or paintec1 wood, to wllich all agreed immediately. They 
lmvc now requested me to procure them the same blue cloth for which I 

formt'rly indented, to cnabk them to new cover their former turbans, and 
make them smart and uniform. 

(Signed) J. WELSH, 
Pallamcottah, 
July 26, 1806. 

• Sheik and Sahib are used inaiscriminlltely. 

('a plain ('ommandlllg lid 
Dutt.hon 3rd Reg-imellt. 
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all kauffers(infidels). I heard Sheik Nutter and SheiL 

Hyder say, that had the mell at VeUore gi ven them at 

Pallamcottah timely * notice of what they meant to do, 

they might have been prepared to perform the same 

seenes at Pallamcottah; that the Europeans were few 

in every station; that the Calistry Raj;lh was very near 

VeHore, and that the men at Vellore had performed 

their parts well at first, but did not carry the business 

through as they ought to have d.one. After the gllr­

burryt, I was sent for by Major ,,, ch.h to give cvidence 

of ,,,hat I knew. 

Q. by the Court -'tV as it before the gllrburry at 

l>..dIamcottah that Major 'V clsh proposed the new 

turbans to be worn ? 

A.-Defore. 

Q.-'Vas it before the news from V clJOf(' had nrrived? 

A.-The news had arrived by means of F.lcqlleers, 

that the mutiny at VeHore had taken place, nud that 

Sheik Adam had distingui~hed himself. The times 

when the turban arrived, and the news from V cUore 

arrived, were nearly tbe same. 

Q. by the Court-When did you first mention to 

Major Welsh that YOll overheard Sheik Hyder say, 

that if the European Officers insisted on their wearing 

the tUriJan, that they might easily be dispatched? 

A.-Not till I was sent for by Major Welsh; it was 

after the disarming had taken place. It was more than 

• The VeJlore massacre coulmcnced several dllYs sooner than was inteuded. 

t Disturbance. 
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a month after J overheard the conversation, that 1 was 

sent for by Major Welsh. 

Q. by tlte Court-Was the green flag you spoke of as 

being hoisted at the Mosque, a strange or a common 

flag, and had you ever seen it before 1 

./1.-1 cannot say whether it was a strange or a com­

mon flag; I never saw it before; I never saw a flag of 

the kind before; but I considered the flag as a flag of 

defiance, on account of the cry of D~en! Dcen! Jaga! 

Kautfre Bagga. 

Q.-How long had you been at Pallamcottah 1 

.:1 - Upon the whule, to the best of my knowledge, 

twelve years. 

Q.-Was any other cause mentioned for the disturb­

ance at V cHore. besides the new turLan 1 

A.-I heard another reason was, that a European 

soldier, who was on guard, after having eaten a piece 

of beef, threw the bone into the platter of a Sepoy; 

that the Sepoy complained to a Subadar, who re­

ported it to the European Serjeant, who called out, 

" Damn you, we shall all eat out of the same dish by 

" arid by *;" that the Sepoy afterwards complained to 

the Officer of the main guard, lrho gave him the b.lme 

reply as the Serjeant; that afterwards he complained 

to the Colonel of the Garrison, who said the same thing 

.. This infamons story W.lS turrent aU over the country for some months. 
Can any man, who knows any thing of the insurmountable lJrejudices of all 

castes and s('cts of the Natives of India (in rpganl to food eSlwrially), douht 

the intention or the effect it wa, likely to produce, on the minuh of the 
Troop~ , 
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as tbe Serjeant. This was toltl the men hy the Fac­

queers who came from Vellore. The l~acqueers also 

said, that this was the cause of the Colonel's being tirst 

killed. 

Q. by lite Court-'Vhat was the report at Pallam­

cottah amongst the Sepoy!>, of a prophecy relative to 

the Mussulmen and Europeans? 

A.--What J understood about it was, tbat the Euro­

peans were to be destroyed by the hands of the Mus­

suImcn, ,\110 were to br reinstated in the i>ame power 

as when Tippoo had possession of Mysore. 

Q. by the Court-In wh.!t language <lid Shcik Hyder 

addrcs'l the Sepoys? 

A.-In Moors. 

The 'Vitncss informs the Court, that slllce he has 

been at Madra.;, he was met hy Abdul ~uhby, Subadar, 

who ad viscd him nut to tell the" holc of what Imppelled 

at Pallamcottah, but to cover himself \\ itll forgetful­

ness, and that the Europeans would soon he gone". 

lYEN PERMAUL, is 8U'Ol'rt. 

Q. by the Prisoner-Relate what you informed me at 

Pallamcottah, a.bout a mutiny in the Corps. 

A.-On the] 4th of November Mrs. Welsh directed 

me to give her the news respecting what was taking 

place at Pallamcottah, and what I heard that was said 

,. The Court took this up, and confined Subadar Abdul Nubby, with 
other mutineer~, in the Fort of Madras, where he btill wa5 a pliwllcr at my 
departure. 
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aUlong the Moor people. On the 18th of the same 

month I took off my turban and jacket, and went to 

the Mosque, and sat down there, when I saw a Facqueer 

who had. come from Vellore. I sat down out of sight 

orthe Facqueer: Sheik Hyder came and sat down near 

the Fac-queer, and said, "You have been here these 

" two months, and I have raised the flag these two 

"months, and it has been generally understood that 

" the dominion now belongs to the Moors. I have 

"received a Letter from the Northward, from the 

<t Frcnrh, the Dutch, ami the Nabob: the contents of 

" the Letter, that the French will give double pay; 

<t therefore you may kill all the Gentlemen." Sheik 

Hyder then sent lor two other Subadars, and told them 

what he had told the Facquecr. I do not know the 

names of the Subadars. The two Subadars con­

sented to kill all the Gentlemen. At length the Ha­

vildar Major* came to the Mosque, and then Sheik 

Hyder told the Havildar Major to collect together all 

the Moor people, for the Hindoos would never agree 

with them; and said to the Bavildar Major, " In ten 

" days we must kill all the Gentlemen." The Havildar 

Major said, "You must wait; in ten days I will get 

" all the people to agree, and we will kill the Gentle­

.. men," The Havildar then told Sheik Hyder to come 

to his (the Havildar's) house, where they would talk 

over the rest. This conversation took place from ten 

.. MallOmed Eshaac, vide Cu!ond Trotter's Letter, Appendix. He is a 
rtligious bigot. 
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o'clock at night till two the next morning; they thou 

went away. On the 15th November I had gone to 

case myself near the Mosque; Sheik Hyder was there, 

talking to the same Facqueer aLout the Letter he had 

received Northward; it was in consequence of what 

I heard on the 15th, that I went to the Mosque on the 

]8th: On the 19th, in the lIloflling, ] reported what I 

had heard to Mrs. ·Welsh. Sheik Hyder also told the 

Facqueer on the 18th, that he had sent the three other 

Subadars, who were Malv.uars, on comruand, as he 

supposed that they would nut join the MoufS. 

Q.-Did you observe a strange flag tlying at the 

Mosque 'f 

A.-Two months before N('vemher, Sheik Hyder, 

Subadar, raised a green triangular flag, which was 

flying three or [our days. In the conversation on the 

18th, Sheik Hyder told tile Facqueer, that he had 

raised this flag in order to make all the Moor people 

consent to kill all the Gentlemen. On the 17th, when I 

was quarrelling with a Facqlleer at the Mosque, Sheik 

Hyder, Subadar, happened to be there, and said to me, 

" Don't you be afraid because I hoisted the flag, to kill 

" the Europeans: you are a black man." 

This Witness informs the Court that Abdul Nubby, 

Subauar, came to him ten or twelve days ago at Mr. 

Cochrane's gardens *, walking. The Witness asked 

him why he came there; he said he came to speak to a 

Moorman, whQ was Captain Bagshaw's servant. The 

• I was livin6' with C"l'tnin Bagshaw, at Mr. Cochrnn~'s g!Lrdens. 
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Witness said, "There is no servant of Mr. Bagshaw's, 

" a Moorman, here-why do you come 1" He said, " I 

" was told there is one, therefore I came. I was told by 

" a servant of Captain Pepper's, that your master has 

" been perusing a Letter with great joy, and has also got 

" back his sword." The Witness said, " I know nothing 

" about all this." The Suuadar Abdul Nubby said, 

" Why do you stay here so many days away from your 

" own country 1" TlJe Witness said, " I wiII go when 

" my master goes." Then Abdul Nubby told him that 

Sheik Hyder was a bad man, flnd would sacrifice every 

thing to carry his point; on which the Witness said, 

" lIe is a very good man." The \Vitness gave him 
that answer, because he thought the Subadar came to 

get intelligence from him. Abdul Nubb} then went 

away. The Subadar was not dressed in the dress of 

an Officer, but with clothes unusually dirty and coarse, 

.and such as a Native Officer would not wear out of 

regimontals. Two or three days after, Abdul Nubby 

came to the Witness with another SUbadar, and told 

him, " that rice is very scarce at Madras; why should 

" we stay here to no purpose? it's better to go away." 

The Witness asked Abdul Nubby and the other Su­

badar why they came. They said they came to speak 

to Major'Velsh. They were undressed as before, and 
in dirty clothes; afterwards they went away. 

'fho Court adjourned till Ten o'Clock To-morrow 

morning, \Vednesday, March 4. 
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JVednesday, MarcTt 4, 1807. 

The Court assembled in pursuance of their Ad­

journment. 
The 'Vitness Iyen Permau}, corrects his statement 

of yesterday, relative to the persons who came to him 

at Mr. Cochrane's garden. '.rwo Native Officers in 

Court, Nubby Cawn and Sheik Khoodby., are identified 

by him, as the persons who came to him. '.rhe first 

time Nubby Cawn came to him alone; the second time, 

he came accompanied by Sheik Khoodby. 

This \Vitness also corrects 11is El'iilcnce of yester­

dayt, by saying, that Sheik Hyder said in the Mosque, 

that he had received a Treaty signed by the French, 

the Dutch, and the Nabob (the ft.fadras Nabob, as the 

Witness thinks), and the subject of the Treaty was, 

that the French would give double pay. 

lYEN PERMAUL on his former Oath-Cross-Examined 
by the JUDGE-ADVOCATE. 

Q.-When you went into the Mosquet, were you 
habited as a Mussulman? 

A.-No, I was in common cloth. 

Q.-Then you remained there in your ordinary dress, 

from ten till two o'clock in the morning? 

A.-Yes, I was there from ten o'clock at night till 

two in the morning. 

• This maD was afterwards dismissed at Chicacole, for &'everting to bis 
old practices, NO'lcmber H1l4. 

t The IntQrpretcr was so bad, I was forced to ohject to him fifty timClt. 
::. He Ilever was ill tht Mosque. 



Q.-You say that Sheik Hyder, when talking to the 

Facqucer, sent lit for two other Subadars-whom did he 

send to call them? 

A.-Their houses were close to the Mosque, and he 

called for them himself. 

Q.-In what language did Sheik Hyder converse 

with the Facqueer? 

A.-In the Malabar. 

Q.-Do people frequently case themselves 1';0 near 

the Mosque? 

A.-It is a common place. 

Q.-'Yhen you eased yourself, how far were you 

from Sheik Hyder? 

A.-There was a wall betwixt us. 

Q.-Did Sheik Hyder converse in a loud tone? 

A.-In his common voice. 

Q.-How high is the wall ? 

A.-It is a high wallt-the persons were not con-

versing in the Mosque, but in a little tiled hut. 

Q.-Did you sec Sheik Hyder? 

A.-Yes. 

Q.-Ifthere was a wall betwixt you, how could you 

see him? 

A.-There was a door in the waIl:t, through which 

I saw him. 

Q. by tlte Prisoner-Where was your house? 

• This was an error of the Interpreter: I heard him plainly say calf6d, 

but the Court w;ould not al\pw me to interfere. 
t With a door in it, he said (bllt not interpreted). 

~ Vide my Plnn, in the Al'p~ndix. 
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A.-Near the Mosque. 

Q.-What was the language in which Native Officers 

usually conversed with Facqueers? 

A.-I don't know, but at this time I speak of, they 

conversed in Malabars. 

JAMES HEPBURN, Collector, Tinnevelly, is next sworn. 

Q. by tlte Pr;soner-Do YOll know any thing of any 

blood at the church of Pallamcottab on tbe 16th 

November Jast ? 

.1.-1 recollect, on Sunday morning, tIl(' 16th N 0-

vcmber, Illy A;,;,i~t'l1lt, Mr. Hanbury, and Mr. DO!lglas, 

the Deputy Commerci,d Ucsident, alter breakfast at 

my house, went to church. I did not sec any blood 

at the church-I did not go to ~he church. 

Q.-When Captain Pepper, yourself, and I, waited 

on 1\1r. Stratton, on the 18th of November, what con­

velsation took place between us? 

A.-Major 'Velsh and Captain l'eppcr calh·t1 on me 

on the morning of the 18th, and a~ked me whether I 

had heard of the blood at the church. I told them I 

had heard it from Mr. Hanbury and Mr. Douglas, but 

that it made 110 particular impres!>ion on me. Major 

Welsh then said he !>uspected tnere was some im­

proper agency going on, to corrupt the minds of the 

Sepoys in the Fort; and he mentioned the circum­

stance of a ghost having been seen to walk about the 

Fort, which had agitated the Sepoys considerably; and 

that although Europeans Jaughed at such things, yet 
I;. 
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amongst Natives such things produced considerable 

.trect. He said be also suspected there were some 

Facqueers about the Fort, and one Facqueer in par­

ticular, who had come from Vellore. whom he bad seen 

loitering about the Fort for some time past. Major 

Welsh said he did not think be had information enough 

to take any other steps, but those of being on bis 

guard. Major 'Velsh then asked me, if I had any 

Peons in the country, who might be depended on in 

the event of an actual disturbance. I said I had only 

my own domestic servants, but that I would make 

every inquiry, to a:.u:rtuin whether such agency was 

going on in the Fort. Major Webh and Captain 

Pepper left me. I called some time afterwards on Mr .... 

Stratton, when I found them talking with ~Ir. Stratton. 

When I came into the room, Mr. Stratton put into my 

hands a cilcular Lett<'l' from Government, in the Secret 

Department, to all Mat;"istrates, \\hidl Mr. Stratton 

said he had received that mornillg from Govcrnmrnt. 

The purport of the Letter was, to the best of my 

recollection, that in consequence 01 the Investigation 

III the Mysore, and at Nundydroog, Government had 

reason to suppose that there were persons travelling 

about the country, in the habits of Facqueers, and 

other religious mendicants, for the purpose gf cor­

rupting the minds of the Native Troops; that his 

Lordship in Coundl therefore directed, that he should 

keep strict watch on all persons of that description, 

not inhabitants of the district; and that any person 
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was to be examined and apprehended, who could not 

give a good account of himself; but that it was nut 

his Lordship's intentions to interfere with the rcligioU$ 

opinions of the country. Major Welsh then repoated 

to Mr. Stratton the substance of what he told me 

helore j and added, in confirmation of rus suspicions, 

an extraordinary speech and warning that had been 

made to him by a Sepoy a few days before: he de­

scribed that Sepoy as a Bengally*, who had been Some 

time in the Corps, and had been ordered on detach­

ment a few days before to Shanganacoile; that he came 

to the Major's llOuse after breakfast one morning, and 

presented himself; that 1\'1 ajor Welsh remarked some­

thing extraordinary in his countenance; that he told 

Major Welsh that he had no friends or relations there, 

but that he was his father; and added, in an elevated 

tone, that there was no such thing as honor or honesty 

in a black man; H and if this Corps could so far forget 

" themselves, as to atlempt any violence to you, or 

" its Officers, it would be my greatest pleasure to die 

" at your feet in your defence."-Then we conversed 

further nn the subject, and it was agreed that we 

should all usc our endeavours to discover whether any 

thing of this kind was going on; but agreed to conceal 

our suspicions as much as possib-Ie from every body, 

and recommended Major Welsh, as quick as possible, 

to apprehend the ghost. The nex.t lllorning, as I was 

.. Aitwaur Syng, 

" 2 
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riding with Mr. Hanbury and Mr. Douglas, we met 

Major Welsh, Captain Pepper, and Mr. Light. Major 

Welsh and myself talked over the subjects again. I 

told Major Welsh I bad been considering what had 

passed yesterday, and thought it unlikely that a mu­

tiny should break out in a place like Pallamcottah, 

where there were Europeans in the rear of it, to cut 

off its communication with other parts of the country; 

that therefore I hoped the alarm would prove ground­

less. Major 'Velsh said he bad the highest opinion of 

his Corp!?, and had often been on service with them; 

and that he had received no further confirmation of 

his suspicions. He said, however, at the same time, 

that he had the day before received a Letter from the 

Adjutant-General's Office, wbich pointed out the rela­

tions of several persons concerned in the affair at 

VeIl ore and Nundydroog, in Major'Velsh's Battalion. 

Q.-After we had assembled at Mr. Douglas's house 

on the 19th November, what measures were proposed 

for the general safety? 

A.-When 1 left Major Welsh on the 19th, shortly 

after I returned home I received a Note from him, 

saying that he had just discovered a plot to murder us 

all, which was to take place in ten days (but if dis­

covered, immediately), as he had reason to believe it 

was; he therefore wished me to confer with Mr. Stratton, 

as something must be done immediately. This Note 

came as I was at breakfast; when breakfast was over, 

Major Welsh called on me, and I asked him how he 
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had discovcred the plot. lIe told me it had been dis­

covered by his Butler, who had been employed as one 

of his agents to watch; that tho Butler had overheard 

two different conversations at the Mosque, and that 

he (Major Welsh) had no doubt of the truth of his 

statement. Major Welsh then told me it was his 

intention to remain with his Corps, and let things take 

their course; hut that he wisl.ed much that the otber 

Gentlemcn should provide for their safety, by leaving 

the place. I advised him to consult Mr. Stratton. 

We went to Mr. Stratton's, where Major'VeIsh left 

Ide. Mr. Stratton and T agreed, that it was impossible 

we could leave our stations at a time like that. 'V c 

considered Major Welsh's information, that the plot 

was to break out in ten days; and it occurred to us, 

that at least a great proportion of the Corpi must be 

ignorant of it, for that one thousand men could not 

preserve such a secret for sucb a length of time, par­

ticularly as we understood, that at Vellore, the greater 

part of the Sepoys were ignorant of what was to take 

I)lace till the moment it broke out; that we knew 

how unwilling men were to rise against their Officers, 

under whom they had served; that in a moment like 

this, the energy of the European character was most 

con:.picuous; that there was no assistance within two 

hundred miles of us, and therefore (for these reasons) 

we concurred in opinion, that it would be better for 

Mr. Stratton to propose to Major Welsh, in tbe name 

of us all, that we should make some effort to stop the 
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bUSiness at the stage where it then was; and that 

therefore We should accompany him to the Fott, where 

-We w<m'd propose to Major Wetsh"', that fte should 

~tzw 'ont his tJt:nps, tmd tell them (the Sepoys), that he 

trtnl 1'eceived information that thore were traitors 

trmongst them, and to point out the men he most 

suspected, and to call on th~ Sepoys to deliver them up; 

and if the least resistance was shown to it, that the 

first person who offered it, should be immediately put 

to death; -and to bTing the matter at once to an issue, 

either to lose our lives, or to bring the Scpoys to a 

state Of subordination. AceordinglyMr. Stratton, Dr. 

M'Cabe, and myself, proceeded to Mr. Douglas's, where", 

we found Captain Pepper and Major Welsh. There 

we made the above-mentioned proposal, together with 

the reasons I have before mentioned, to Major 'Velsh. 

After some consideration, Major 'V clsh agreed in 

OUT opinion, and then Mr. Stratton told bim that he 

(Mr. Stratton) understood and spoke the Hindoostannec 

perfectly wen, and if he (MajoTWelsh) could not speak 

it fluently, he (Mr. Stratton) would speak for Major 

Wemb;n front of the men. Major Welsh stated, there 

wet'e two 'then in particular at the head of the business, 

and he 'Was of opinion, that if those persons could be 

divided from 'the Co rp"S , the accomplishment of the 

• This romantic plan was exactly what IlIad determined upon, should 
tle other Gentlemen agree to withdraw till the result should have proved 
ttl t'lIeaey. I meant them tmly to go on a hunting party. Subseql1cnt 
ennta rendered it abortive, as the men were ~unniug to their arms wben 
WI went to the Barracks, IIPIl the ringlenders had not gone outside. 
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plan would be easier ~ few days before that, a Sepoy 

£lad been poisoned in tbe Barracks by his wife, and 

Major Welsh tbought it would be a good opportunity 

to send those persons out of the Fort, to order them to 

Mr. Stratton, the Magistrate, to give their depositions 

on that murder, and stated, that he thought we could 

give more effectual assistance by remaining at the 

gardens to secure those men, than by accompanying 

him to the Fort. We acceded to this, and Major 

'Velsh then proceeded to the Fort with that intention. 

About three hours afterwards we received intimation 

hom the Fort, that Major Welsh had succeeded in 

securin!~ the Native Officers, and disarming the Corps, 

among!>t which were the two men who were to have 

heen sent to us, but who h~d not obeyed the order. 

'Ve then mounted our horses and rode to the Fort, 

where we found the Corps had been disarmed by Major 

Welsh. 

Q.-On the same e\ elling, what was it that 1 said to 

yo~, when desired to put the prisoners in irons? 

A.-It was suggested at Major Welsh's door, where 

we were all standing, that it might be found expedient 

for the general safety to put the Native Officers in 

irons. Major Welsh refused so to do; and I remember 

that he turned round to me, and said that if it should 

be found necessarY1 he would not mind blowing one or 

two of them away at the muzzle of a gun; but t}.1a\-he 

never could consent to disgrace brave men like those, 

whom he had so often led into action, where they had 

behaved like gallant soldiers, by putting irons on them. 
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Q.-Do you recollect any c;:onfession made by one of 

the Subadars in confineme~ 
A.-I did not hear it, but Major Welsh told me at the 

very moment after it had been said to him, that while 

he was putting the old Subadar Secunder Cawn into 

confinement, he said, H What do I know of this 7 I 

" heard Sheik Hyder say the other day at the Mosque, 

" you were all to be murdered." 

Q.-Do you remember examining any pouches we 

brought from the Barracks to the house on the evening 

of the 1Dth of November? 

A - Y Cb, I recollect Major Welsh sent to the Barracks 

fol' some poucheR, and two barrels of ball ammunition 

from the stores: on examining the cartridge boxes, 

Major Welsh and I found two of tltem, 1 am certain of 

(and I rather think there wet'e more), completely tilled 

with ball cartridges. Major 'Velsh told me at the same 

time, that ball ammunition !tad beeu taken tlte night 

beforefrom tlte regimental stores without his orders. 

Q -Was there a Malabar IAetter read to U5, from 

Quilon, on the morning of the 20th 1 

A.-There was. There were some curious and ob­

scure expressions in it, hinting as if something of con­

sequence was ]i1.ely to take place.-It was addressed 

hy the writer to his sister at Madura, intimating that 

he would get two months' leave of absence after 

Janua.ry, to come and sec her, and that after that 

".' .t period he should not belong to the Service: it struck me 

to he an obscure Letter. 

Q.-Did not you and Mr. Stratton peruse my Let-
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ters to Trichinopoly, Travancore, and Ceylon, on the 

('veilings of the 19th and 20th November? 

A .-1 recollect the Letter to Travancore, carlyon 

the morning of the 20th-that Mr. Stratton put Major 

\Velsh's Letter to the Officer commanding Travancore 

into my hands. 

Q.-Did it strike you as a proper Letter? 

.,1.-1 had no grounds of judgment but from the 

information of Major Welsh. 

(J.-\Vere you and Mr. Stratton present when I 

\lfote to Ceylon? 

A.-\Ve were present the wllOle,ffiorning when Major 

\Vebh was writing, but whether to Ceylon or not, I 

cannot say. 

Q.-Did I not propose to Mr. Stratton, to sign the 

I,etter to Ceylon? 

11.-Y es; I recollect some conversation on that 

point, between Mnjor ""clsh and Mr. Stratton. Mr. 

Sttatton's objections to signing it were, that it involved 

a point of a military nature, of which he tlid not con­

sider himself a competent judge. 

Q.-What did Aga Nuzzer Ally and Mr. Fisher say 

respecting the man called the Vellore Facqueer? 

A.-Mr. Pisher said that he had met that man near 

the Travancore gate, within the hounds of the Tra­

vancore country, and that he had abused all the 

Europeans in the grossest manner, and also Iiu~cr 

Ally, for being in company with an European; "that 

" the time for the Europeans was nearly come, and 

" that he was the man chosen to cut off 10,000 heads." 



I8G 

Q.-Dtd not Colonel Dyce approve my conduct on 

the 19th and 20th November? 

A.-Lieutenant-Colonei Dyce appeared completely 

to approve aU that Major Welsh had done, and went 

a degree further .thun Major Welsh. 

Q.-What appears to you to be the sentiment con­

cerning my conduct and measures ( 

A.-That Major Welsh acted with the best inten­

tions, and to the best of his conscience and ability, to 

fultil his duty towards the Government. 

If ~rp. the Prisoner do"c:. his Evidence, and mu!"c . ., 

the following written Address to the Court *. 

CONCLUDING DEFENCE. 

MR. PRESIDENT AND GBNTJ,EMEN, 

I II A" E now no further Evidence to 

call; but as mine has not been a common case, I trust 

I shall be allowcd to say a few words in conclusion. 

'Yhen I left Pallamcottah, in Command of the 1st 

Battalion ard Regiment, I little thought I should ever 

have to appear as a culprit, before a General Court 

Martial. 

My Command was taken from me, in the first in­

stance, on the road; and I was directed to proceed 

alone to Trichinopoly. It was not till after my arrival 

there that I was put in arrest, and made acquainted 

with the Charges given in against me; I was therefore 

not at all prepared for the event, and consequently 

11 After letiring for half an hour. 
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omitted to call on several Evidences who (it now 

appears) would bav,., heoo essential; UQ it is known 

to this Court, that Mr. Stratton, the Judge of the Zillah 

(who was one of my most material Evidences) has been 

prevented by an accident from attending. 

The Court has beeu so very kind as to offer to 

adjourn till other Evidences should be summoned; 

but 1 am anxious to avoid further delay, and have 

therefore declined it. 

I trust the Evidences I have produced, have suffi­

ciently established every point asserted in my I}cf'ence; 

I shall therefore only take the liberty to point out to 

the Court, the 4th Article of the 2nd Section of the 

Articles of War, which appears particularly applicable 

to my case. 

And here I take my leave, impressed with the most 

lively sentiments of gratitude to this Honorable Tri­

bunal, for the great indulgence I have experienced, 

during a long and tedious Examination, and most 

cheerfully resign the exculpation of my character into 

its hands. 
(Signed) J. WELSH, 

Major, 1st Bat. 3rd Reg. 

Madras, March 4, 1807. 

The Court adjourned till Thursday, the Gth day of 

March. 
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Thursday, 5th March, 1807. 

The Court assembled this day, pursuant to their 

Adjournment, and proceed to deliberate concerning 

their Sentence. 

Whereupon the Court, after the most serious deli­

beration on the several Charges, the Evidence adduced 

in support of them, and the Evidence brought by the 

Prisoner, Major James Welsh, in his Defence-say, 

that he is NOT GUILTY of the First, Second, and Third 

Charges, and do most HONORABLY ACQUIT him of the 

same. 
(Signed) D. CAMI'RELL, 

Maj.-Gen. and President. 

Approved and Confirmed, 

(Signed) J. F. CRADOr:K, 
Lieut.-Gen. Commander-in-Chief 

Flirt St. George, Mat'clt 7, 1807. 

(Signed) C. MARSH, 
,ludge-Advocate General. 

No/e.-The same Court recommended Aitwllr Syng, the Bengal Sepoy, 

to the particular favor of the Commander-in-Chief, who took no notice of 

the recommendation. ThiN was mentioned to me by the I1resident . 

• J. Wr:LSH. 
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actually formiDg a pnrt of my DefcDce. 



APPEN DIX. 

LETTER A. 

To Lieutenant-Colonel Dyce, Commanding tlte Tinnevelly 
District, Pallamcottah. 

SIR, 
I HAVE the honor to lay before you, a 

statement of the measures adopted here for the secu­

rity of our lives previous to your arrival, together 

with the circumstances which led to them. 

PARA. I. - On Sunday the 16th instant, in the 

morning, the Rev. Mr. Ringletaube was called to 

observe some blood sprinkled at the church-door: on 

ex.amination, he found two large stains on each side 

of the threshold, and then drops of blood, leading 

from them, through the railings of one grave, and 

completely round another, where no further traces 

c0w.d be found. 

This occurrence ( although remarkable), under other 

circumstances, would have passed without observa­

tion, had I not learnt next morning, that the minds of 

the Sepoys had for some nights before been consi­

derably agitated by a ghost, which demanded bread 

and water; sometime& informing those it met, that it 
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was the spirit of a Moor Commandant, \\ ho had been 

blown away from a gun by the English. 

PARA. 2.-After breakfast, a Sepoy of the name of 

Eitwaur Syng, a Bengallie of the most upright and 

honorable character, whom J have had the good for­
tune to attach to me, by maintaining him many months, 

until a vacancy happened for him in the Corps (be 

having been several years in it formerly, and turned 

out, when the strength was reduced, five years ago, 

PARA. I.-A l'ortuguese Padry IIsc(1 to come now and then to Panam­
eottah, to vil,it a Roman Clltholic church, lind im'lIrillhly, on former occa­
sions, used to vi"it Mr. Ringletauhe, and Mr. Sawyer prior to his return to 
Manapar (his residcnc~): it had been remarked duriug his last visit, that 
he was much occupied, and many confessions and penancps were performed 

at his church. Un the evening of the 15th November, h" scnt a servant to 
Mr. Ringietallbe, u(hising him to go into the country. On that night he 
went off, without sflying a word to any hody, and the hlood appeared at the 
Englbh church ncxt morning. On the 2Zlld, an anonymous Letter was 

found on tb .. parmlt-, directed to be opened by the Rev Mr. Ringlctaubc, and 

read on oath to Coionel Dyec, 1\11'. St"alton, Mr. Hcphurn, lind myself: it 
stated, that as the writ!'1' was goiIlg by tbe Nabob's thoultry (which is on 

the road to the sea-ro",t), he o\'crheal'tI three Fac'lueers and a Chettie 
conversing together; they said, "that after tbe Europeans were murdered, 
" they were to form a camp, &c.; that Phaul Raott (a retailer of grain) 
" was to supply them with provisions, and Ramalingalll (Colonel Macaulay's 
" dubash) was to send pepper, Ole. from Travancore;" it was signed with 
a cross, and is still in my possession. Every endeavour of mine to trace 
the author (by similarity of writing, &c.) was without success; but the 
Bame day a small white flag wai displayed at the Portuguese church, with a 
black cross in th .. centre. I am firmly of opinion, that the priest was the 

author of it and the bloody warning, though of course he darf'd not come 
forward; but what led me to attend to it at all, was a coincidence in an 
inverted Letter, intercepted in the TappaU from Travancore, and addressed 

to Ramalingan.'s brother-in-law, the only Intelligible part of wliich, men­

tioned an intention of sending powder and flints to Pallameottah. 
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without any provision, in a foreign country), and who 

was in the habits of visiting me every day, for a tno­

ment, to inquire after my health, had such a look of 

sorrow and dejection on his countenance, that I was 

astonished, and asked him what was the matter: he 

told me that Sheik Hyder had just ordered him on 

command to Shanganacoile; that his family were 

there i but still he wished to remain and watch over 

my safety i adding, in an, elevated voice, H I have no 

" friends, no relation here but you; there is not such 

H a thing as iUlth 01' honor in a black mun; if it 

« were possihle that the men of this Corps could so far 

" forget themselves, as to attempt yom' life, my only 

.. wish is to defend it, and die at your fecL" There 

were people in the verandah, and a sentry walking in 

front, in our hearing. I asked him if he had heard any 
news; he replied, "No, Sir, who "ill tell me allY'!"­

I made some inquiries about the blood and the ghost; 

he knew nothing of the former, but had heard of the 

latter; he said, he was not afraid of such things; "that 

H it was said to be a villain of a Subadar, who was 

<t blown from a gun for mutiny many years ag-o; that 

" if he did walk at night, it was like a thiefin the dark, 

" and for no good purpose." 

PARA. 3.-The Detachment for Shanganacoile had 

been positively ordered by Lieutenant and Adjutant 

Wilson, to be furnished from the 'rhird Company alone, 

and Eitwaur Syng belongs to the first. This, with the 

oircumstances already related, made some impression 
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on my mind, especially as I had received intelligence 
from you, that there were incendiaries distributed all 
over the Carnatic to poison the minds of the Native 

Soldiers, and sUr them up to revolt. 

I immediately waited upon Mr. Hepburn, and men. 
tioned my suspicions, that the ghost was irritating the 

Native Trool)S against the English. We proceeded to 

Mr. Stratton's, where (in strict conJidence) he put 

into my hand a circular Letter from Government, 
informing him, that, from Evidences examined at Nun­
dydroog and Bangalore, it had been ascertained that 
agents were suspected to be at work in different parts, 
uodcr the habit of mendicant Facqueers, tampering 
wjtb the Native Troops. 

It was determined to take no notice of the blood, 
which we considered as a friendly warning of danger, 

but to devise means to secure the incendiary who had 

assumed the fictitious character of a ghost. 

PARA. 4.-1 returned home, and wrote you an 
account of these circumstances, and shortly after re­

ceived your Letter from Courtallum, giving cover to 

Colonel Agnew's Letter of the 10th instant, directing 
your endeavouring to carry Meuoo Naigue, the brother 
of Subadar Sheik Adom (the ringleader at Ve]}ore), 
along with you: this, with other information it con­
tained, added to my uneasiness. 

PARA. 3.-Vide Colonel Dyce's Letters, Appendix NOB. IX. and XI. detail. 
ing all the late tTanaactions in full, he having Been the Public Reports, lie. ; 
&neral M'Dowai's Letters on the subject of Nundydroo!,lDd Bangalore. 

PARA. '.-Vlde Colonel Dyce's Letter, AppeDdit No. XII. 
'I'here were in the Corps two brother. of the ringleader, Sheik Adom, 

L 
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PARA.5.-The next morning Captain Pepper, my 

brother-in-law, and self, rode out very early, con­

versing on the best method of ascertaining the state of 

affairs, without divulging our own uneasiness. On my 

return home, I was informcd, through the Butler, .. that 

I( a plot to murder us all in tcn days had been disco­

H vered by him; that the Moors appeared alone con­
I( cern ed, and that if they suspected any disclosure, 

" they would perpetrate it immediately: the Tindal 

" and my boy Ramasawmy in tbe plot." Such of the 

Officers as came to breakfast with me, were made ar­

quainted witlt tlte discovery, and we observed that 

we were narrowly watched by servants, Sepoys, &c., 

and my boy Bamasawmy disappeared for some time, 

returning while we were stilI at breakfast. 

and two brothers of Jemadar Noo!' Mahomed. This man, "lee,.aa, ",lS on 
leave to Vellore at the time thattlngcdy was rch!'arsing, and Idt it to .ctilln 

to the Corps only a few days before it was performed. 
PARA.5.-This was done in writing, with injunctions of silence and 

accre ... y; and had we Ilssembled together in private at this time in the I'ort, 
it would have bct.ayed our knowledge of the plot, without tending to allY 

real good. I only assured them all, that I would immediately take &tcps for 

the general safety. 
Another remarkable circumstance hnd happened the e>'cning before. It 

had been my custom at evening parad~s, to put the Corps through a few 
manreuvres in quick thn.>, and fire immediately from the point of formation, 

as I would do in front of nn enrmy. On the en'ning of the 18th, P'"C'cut, 
Captain Pepper, Lieutenants Perkins, Gore, and Duma" (Lieutenant Wilson 
being unwell), a Collector's Feon brought a large packet (intcnded for 
Colonel Dyce at Courtallum) ; a Sepoy, or Non-Commissioned, ofLieutcnant 
GOI;f's Company, turned pale, and touched another. I ga,-e the packet to 
my"Orderly, and began a manreuvre. The men marched in disorder, 
Cormed ill, and, in short, did every tIling in the mo.t careless and blovenly 

,manner. I admonished them to little purpose; and when the Office!"s fell 
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PARA. 6.-After breakfast Captain Pepper and I 

drove out to Mr. HepbUln's, where we found Messrs. 

Hanbury, Douglas, and M'Cabe; after speaking a few 

words, we proceeded to .Mr. Stratton's, to mention the 

discovery I had made, and to avail myself of tus 
advice. Apprehenuing that we might there be over­

beard, we proceeded to Mr. Douglas'S bouse, as a 

more plivate place, and there also we observed the 

eyes of all upon us, and some Sepoys, dressed and 

undressed, the latter of whom moved off hastily. This 

combination of circumstances, left not a doubt in my 
mind as to the immediate danger. 

PARA.7.-0n a general consultation, it was sug­

gested and determined, in consideration of the ap-

out in front, Lieutenant Perkins observed, that the whol~ Corps were either 
drunk or stupid. r was pomlcring on the cause myself, amI d~sired him not 
to speak so lowl, as bib remark was ovrrheard, and could do no good. 
On every other o{'cabion, I had remarked with much pleasure, that since die 
Vellom husiness, the Conls in a body were alert, and anxious to do well, 
and that, individually, they were more respectful and circumspect than ever. 

Latc that nisht, [ was informed tbat a quantity of ball cartridges. had 
been taken out of the stores, (I supposed ostensibly for the drill). On ex­
BI11ining the pouches next day, in search of ammunition, we found many 
with several, and one full of ball cartr.dyes, the rest having the usual number 
(6) only • 

.. Mr. Hepburn has fully confirmed IUy assertion about the ball cartridges, 
which Lieutenant Gore could also have done, had I recollc('ted the cir­
cumstance in time to call upon him; but this being only one out of fifty 
instances of treason at the time, it had escaped my memory. Worn down 
as I was by sickness at the time of my Trial, I could hardly recollect *"a' 
partieUl{lf ~ople were present on different occasions. 

L2 
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pareat arlene), of tbe case, and the great danger which 

must accrue from delay in such circumstances (when 

it was evident tbat our knowledge of the plot had 

transpired), that we should immediately proceed in a 
bQdy to the Fort, and seize the ringleaders; but on 

my representation of the necessity of securing the two 

principal ones outside, it was agreed that Captain 
Pepper and I should alone return to the Fort, and send 

tbem out under some pretence to the Magistrate, in 
order that they might be seized and secured; which 

the Gentlemen present agreed to effect. 

PARA. B.-Finding on my arrival, that the rest of 

the Officers had. in my absence, adopted a similar 
opinion, as to the propriety of seizing the ringleaders 

(which had now become the general sentiment), I in 

consequence determined to adopt that measure imme­
diately, and sent for Subadar Sheik Hyder and the 

Havildar Major, and having given them a Letter, 
ordered them to take it themselves to the Magistrate; 

the former (in particular) seemed much flurried, but 

assented. I had people watching to give notice of 

their departure, which did not take place till two 
hours after, and learning at the same time, that there 

was a great stir among the Sepoys in the Fort, we im­
mediately proceeded to the Barracks, ordering the 

B,arrack-guard W fall in; we put ourselve$ at the 
bead of it, priming aDd loading with ball cartridges, 

'd' • 
and each seizing a musket, made the Drummer beat 
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the long roll, while we marched into the Barracks and 

secured the arms, directing the men, as they arrived. 

to parade outside without arms. and the Native Offi­

cers who appeared. to join ns-a scene of muoh con­

fusion took place. but no tumult. 

PARA. 9.-1 told the men 1 knew that there was 

treason going on in the Corps; that I was come down 

to put it to the test; but that I €lnd my Offic~ers were 
resolved to sell our lives dearly, if necessary. At this 
time 1 observed Subadar Sheik Nutter very busy load. 

ing a musket, and 1 immediately loaded another; 

when he went up to Lieutenant Gore, and begged him 

to prevent my shooting him. 1 ordered him to lay down 

his musket among the rest, as I did 110t want the 

Battalion to fall in under arms. 

PARA. 8.-The Subadar came first, and on receiving my Note went away, 
and shortly after the Havildar Major came, attended by two Sepoys completl'ly 
armed (who stopped in my verandah) ; he told me Sheik Hyder wished to 
send somehody else, but on my repeating my orders to him, he went aWILY 

again. 
Havildar Abdul Alum (Brother to Subadar Abdul Nubby) had been, con­

trary to custom, my Orderly every other day hince the 12th; he was so on 
the 18th, and next day came :It noon with Letters from Colonel Dyce's 
gardens, as Havildar of the Guard, or Colonel's Orderly. lIe appeared very 
inquisitive. I was then writing, and ordered him back, with Letters to be 
sent by the Colonel's Tappall, in one of whieh I slipped a Note, as follows: 
" My dear Sir, I have discovered a plot to murder us all, and am going to 
« take irr'llediate measures. If I live till to-morrow all will be well; if 
" not, I dit. in the execution of my duty." And this nry man appeared 
afterwards at the Barracks at two, when I assembled t~Orp9, and was (with 
his brotber, who had lately been reducell for insolence to Jemadar (now 
Subadar) Cbcnawasb. tben on Detachment) extremely officious, till or­
dered by me to fall in. 
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A Sepoy was at the same time observed to snap a 

piece (behind where I was standing), and was in­

stantly knocked down by a Havildar: on examining 

the piece, it proved to be loaded. As soon as I had 

colJected all the arms in a corner, I singled out 

Rungiaha Gentoo, Havildar, and six men of like caste, 

for a guard, and put it under the ordels of Lieutenant 

Wilson, with directions, on no account whatever to 

suffer a man to approach the l.'>pot. 

I marched the party to the general parade, keeping 

all the Native Ofiicers (who had assembled one after 

anothPT) in front, heating the long lOll al1 the way. 

To our astonishment, Subadar Sheik Hyder and the 

Havildar Major (who it seems had disoheyed my 

order, in not going to the Magistrate) now appeared. 

PARA. 9.-'Vhen aul/l/utl< intelligence had heru rcc~iI'cd of the traglc,.1 
transactions at Vellorc, I assembled the Native Officers, Rnd told them the 
whole story As soon lib I had mcntionrd the numherof Officers and Europeans 
butchered In colel blood, Suhadw SheIk Nutter grinneel in the most horrid 
manncr; it was a grm of delight, of the mObt dlObolnal appearance, and 
made so much impression ou my mind, that I mentIOned it at the same time 
to several gentkmen. On the 15th instant, a Sepoy of the Light Company 
having come to me in an improper manner, and insisted on Illy giving him 
leav(', I spoke to the Cote Havildar ahout the impropriety of allowing a man 
to rome in that manner. fIIext mOlning I waS too ill to attend parade. 
Captain Pepper commanded; and when he had dismissed the paucl!', 
Subadar Sh .. k Nutter anel some others came forward, and said they had a 
complaint to make to me, lind must see me; in particular, SheIk Null ... 

was presumptory, and saiel I hadabLSed him, in con~equence of the Sepoy's 
misconduct. Captain Pepper toM them, this was not a proper method; that 
I was unwell, bnt that he would mentIOn it to me. I .ent for Sheik Nutter 
in the presence of Sheik Hyder, and ask('d him what cause of complaint I 
had given him. He put his hands in a supplicating posture, and assured me 
he had nODI.'; talking in much too humble •• st) Ie for a boldier. I supposed 
him a little in liquor, nnel sent him a\l ny satbfied. 
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PARA. 10.-1 made the whole fall in on the parade in 
line, and then ordered the Oento08, Malabars, Rajah. 

poots, and Christians, to fall out, and form in front; 

when I gave them the loaded arms, telling the Moor­

men, " that by the blessing of God, I hoped 1 had 

" defeated a plot to murder me and their European 

"Officers, which 1 know several Moormen were 

" engaged in, ii'om having been misled by the malicious 

"falsehoods and influence of enemies and incen­

" diaries; that 1 found it absolutely nece&sary, for my 

" own safety, to disarm them all, until the business 

{t should have been investigated." 

PARA. 11.-1 requested the Native Officers to ac­

company us to my quarter, the Hindoo guard follow­

ing: there I told them that I was obliged to request 

them to stay in a room, putting sentries over tlte door. 

We then returned to the narra('k~, armed some more 

of the Hindoo Scpoys and the Drummers, and took 

posst·ssion of the gates successively; locked two gates, 

and brought away all the arms to the General Stores, 

and then formed two parties of equal strength, oue 

there, and the other at my quarters opposite to it; after 

which we called all the Moormen, and told them, .. that, 

" under the present circumstances, it would he neces-

PARA.lO.-At this time Mr. Sawyer, Paymaster's Head Writer, observed 
my Orderly hissing at me behind my back, and heard him say in Malabar 
(when I called out, " Fall in") "Yes, yes, you may call, but we will see 
" who will come now." On being informed of this I put him in irons, but 
released him two days after, with some wholesome admonition. 



150 

" sary to march them out ofthe Fort, where they must 

If remain until an investigation bad been made, as to 
., the innocence or guilt of their N ath e Officers." 

At sun·set I wrote an Express to Colonel Campbell, 

stating matter. as they then appeared, and soliciting 

immediate succours. 

PARA. 12.-We separated the Native Officers into 
two parties, confining one Iml[ at the General Stores. 

One old Subadar, Secundel' Cawn, bowever, was put 

into II. godown contiguoll Q to my bouse (being told he 

was a particular ringleader), and when I was shutting 

the door, and advised him to confess the truth, he 
said, " he know nothing further than that Sheik Hyder 
U had once said at the Mosque, t!tat we were all to be 

H murdered." This, when questioned next day, he posi­
tively denied, and pleaded entire ignorance, which we 

can only account for, from the Tindal (an accomplice) 
being confined in the same place at night, for want of 

another secure place. 

PARA. n.-Here it may be necessary to affirm, that although '''found it 
expedient to connne the Native Officers, I nc. forgot that they were 
Commis8ioned OfJi~er8, or treated them with tbe1'lighl.e8t indignity. They 
had chairs to Bit on, and retalDed their swords till night. 1 put no further 
reatraint on them than was (onsistent with our own safety, and allowed 
their own servants and families to attend them with their Tictuals, &c., only 
informing them, that I should Dot hesitate, in my situation, to put any man 
to dea'lon the spot, who should attempt to force his way. 
, "P.t.tt.l. 12.-1 have since learnt, that Lieutenant Gore was present with 
_when this man confessed the plot; this was 8worn to by the Butler; and 
,..hat makE'S it more probable is, that Secunder Cawn only returned from 
two mOllths' leave to Madura 011 the 15th; so that ie was natural, that 011 the 
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PARA.13.-Next morning, still impressed with the 

same idea of our situation, I wrote (with the general 

concurrence) a Letter to the Honorable Major-General 

Maitland, requesting immediate assistance; stating 

for a reason, the supposed spreading mutinous prin­

ciples all over the coast, and there being no Europeans 

nearer than Trichinopoly, and four Native Corps to 

the southward of it. This Letter I enclosed to Mr. 

Baggott at Tutucoryn, desiring him to forward it im­
mediately by sea, offering a reward for speedy delivery, 

which he did immediately, at tho expenee of 300 

pagodas. 

PAR.-\'. 14.-1 beg leave to observe, that I submitted 

eve:-y Letter to Messrs. Stratton and Hepburn, pre­
vious to my dispatcbing tbem; they having insisted on 

my assuming tbe entire cpmmand of them, and a11, in 

every thing regarding military measures, for tbe general 

good. 

PARA. 15.-1 also wrote a hasty Letter to the Officer 

commanding in ~~vancore, warning him of the appa­
rent danger, as I .dorstood the Vollore and northern 
mendicants had proceeded there some time before. 

firat meeting. he 8honld be made acquainted dh the nature of a plot in 
which he was calIed upon to become an actor. A qnarrel with a F&eqlJ!!er pre. 
vented their meeting on the 16th and 17th, both nights of which the Butler 
watched, baTing overheard Sheik Hyder say on the 15th, "tht lor'tDer 
.. bUlineu hall failed; let 118 meet again to-mortow nigllt." 

PAR •• 15.-A Lett~r Whleh tIre Tappall man broughtearJy this mo1lliDJ. 
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PARA.' 16.-After breakfast on the 20th, a Com­
mittee was formed, of Messrs. Stratton, Hepburn, and 

was opened (in consequence of the message he had received from tlle pri­

soner Madur Saib), and read to liS by the Vakeel and Writer Major. It 
was from a Sepo". or Non-Commissioned, of the Trnvancore Subsidiary 

Force, to a relation at Madura, and hinted that he would have no further 

service in a month or two; but desired the r~e('i,'er to be quiet, and appear 
to have received only Hazar new" lIlentioning n person having brought a 

,'crbnl message safe. A llavilrlar of my own Corps har! turned a ~Facqueer, 
un<l~r circnmstRnces reported to the COlmnnmler-in-Chief, and had pro­
ceeded to Travancore with others, at lea,t two months before. Besides, the 

sn'picious fac'lneer, lmown to have comp from Ycllore in July (and with 
whom my Nath'~ Officers wrrl' r"n",;lti,,~ UlJ the 15th and lRth November), 

had absconded on the morning of the I!Jth, and proceeded to Travancore. 

EXPLANATORY NOTE. 

Copy of my Letter on the 81ddect of the JIavildtll,. 

To tile .4{(jlltltllt- General of l/,e Army, Fort St. Geo~ge. 
Silt, 

I TAKE the lil)('rty to solicit the Commander-in-Chicf's permis­

sion to dischargc a SPpoy of thc Corl's, under particular circumstances which 
require explanation, and am obliged to trespass on His Excellency'S time, 
in order to ju,tify my apparent s('vcrity to lin old man and an old soldier. 
On the 2nd of July 1 obtained Lieutenunt-Colonel Dyce's permilision to be 
absent from my station for tbe benefit of my heulth and that of my family; but 
a few (lIty, after, receiving the accolllpanying Proceedings of a Battalion Court­
Martial (assembled hy my authority), 1 determined immediately to return to 
my station, and be present myself at the pnblication of the Sentence: the 
crime of which the prisoner bad been cOllvicted, being of so extraordinary 
a nature, that it appeared to require immediate and exem\llary punishment, 
and, at thc same time, I tbought it my dnty to explain to the Corps, in tbe 
fullest manner, my senti~nts on sneb a flagrant breach of discipline. I 
assembled the Corps, and the sentence was carried into execution on the 
11th July, since which time (until within these few days) tbe delinquent 
remained in hospital; but after being Gliscbarged, he positively refused to 
dress, or do any duty, and insists on turning a Facquecr. Consideration for 

bis age and former services, makes 1M averse to punilih him further; and 
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myself, my Officers (six in number), and the other 

Gentlemen being employed in military duty: we 

immediately proceeded to examine Evidences; and 

my Butler (who had been employed as one of my 

agents for the diJcovel'Y of any treasonable pro-

as all entreaties nre in vain, i am compelled to exert my authority, and tUrn 

him, not only out o[the C0rp5, but out "f tlte Garrison, nntil such time as I 
&hall rl'c('he 11is (li~('harg'('; he hdng ('I\n~idercd as PH ob~tinatt' aud violent 

man by nil tIle Nati\'c ()fficrr~ (to ",1"'1\1 he has fl'equcntly "hewn his turbu­
lent disl'o:.ilion). It may he necessary to say, 1 have Licutl'nant-CoJont'l 

Dyce's cx!,ress rermi"ion to tUI'll all 'Ill Ii nWIl as nrc tlischar~,'<1, out of the 
Fort. As, did not f\lltl the bam~ ohjcction ~~ain't an t'xl'rci;c of demeney 

towarrl, the rebt of IIIl' priM",,'r, then tl jed, I was happy to Illeet tl'e wishes 
of the COllrt, l:1nd forg(lY(" till'm. 

I hOI'" Ilis Exrl'!lcnry \\ i!l not infrt' (from tltis cil'l'umstnncr) a state of 
inhuhorrlination in tl,is Corps-few arc e,c punishment. inflicte'l in it, indecd 

sdtlO!ll fllY (but for tlescrtion amoug thc IaLl' drafts) ; and I am too well 

awan' of the spcrc(\ tn"t rq'osc(l in me, to Lvcrlook miscondu(tin any man. 

])(flcd 

Pallamcoflalt, 

S"ptl'/It~"" LIt, leOti. 

(f'igncd) .1. 'VELSlI, 
Capt. {'ommau.dir;; 

1st /Jat. 3rd Re~, N. r. 

NOle.-Tloc Proecedings alluded to arc with the Corps, being among the 

Official Vouchers of the H.lttaliull. The men tded were Ema"", Ally. 

HaviHar,,, NaiKltl·, and three or fOllr SCJ'oys, f)r gross neglect of duty, and 

pointed disubcdience of orders given hy Captain PCI,per (wlto commanded in 

my aLsence) ; ('nd to this the Urn'ildar adtled insolence, which amounted to 

mutiny. and was nearly being cut ,Iown by Captain Pel'per at the time. The 
(;ourt ,entcnced him to be rednced to the ranks, Rnd to receive 300 or 590 

lashes; but recommended him to me for mercy, as a very old soldier. I 
issued an Order on my return, and explained it myself tv the Corps_" that 

" the offence this mall has committed, was such as I nevcr could pardon in 

" any man; and that so far from "eing lessened, it was aggravated by his 

"being an old soldier, as hc should ha\'c known better how to behave to 

" his immcdiate slIperior, when on duty." I forgave the rest, because they 

had not added insolcnce to their other offences. 

H. C. S. Int/us, q1f tke Cape, 
September 16, 1807. 

(Signed) J. WELSH. 
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reedings) deposed on oath, "That on the night of the 

" 18th he had overheard a conversation between a 

.. Facqueer from VeHore, Subadar Sheik Hyder, the 

"Havildar Major, and two other Native (Moor) 
" Officers; stating, that they had formerly failed at the 

" time of hoisting the strange flag (which occasioned 

II us so much uneasiness), but that DOW matters were 

" different; that Moormen were alone to be let into 

" the secret, and that we were aU to be murdered in 

" ten days," &c. His Evidence was apparently clear 

and flatisfactory. The D"",t person that came forward 
was my boy. Ramasawmy (the same the Butler sus­

pected of being in the plot), who swore, "That as he 

"was walking along the Barrack-street four or jive 

~, nights ago, he observed an assembly, and overheard 

" one man say, 'that there were forty or fifty (sup­

" • posed to mean thousands) at the Bala Ghaut, 

" • coming down-that Tippoo and the Nabob were 
" 'no more; that the English were a handful; the 

" • French would give double pay; that we must be 
" , killed; that the arrival of those forces from Bala 
.. 'Ghaut, would create a great gurburry, or confusion.'" 

PARA. 16.-Tbis Deposition at fuU length I beg leaTe here to lay before 
the Court, as it was exactly the same as the intelligence he first communi­
cated, which induced me to take the steps I did the day before. The Court 
can again question him on the several parts of it in person. Vide De­
position No. I. 

Tllu boy 1 have already stated to have been in the plot. Observing the 
success of my measu1't's, and not knowing tbe extent of my intelligence, he 
came to me and Mrs. Welsb the <',ening before, and told us this very story, 
only speakil1lJ positively as to the persons of Sheik Hyder, Syed Cawder, 
and Sheik Hussein, Native Officers. See DepQlition No. 111. 
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P~JU. lB.-it having come out in Evidence, tbat 
Sheik Hyder's brother (who is also in confinement) 
had sent a message to tbe TappaU Conicopuly, to 

prevent Ilis own and his brother's Letters falling into 
my bands, we were induced, in consequence, to order 

such to be opened *, as we thought might lead to 
furtber discovery. In one Letter, we found this re­

markable passage: "To the north of Cotahcottab, the 

" residence of the Rajah of Tondemaun, there is a 
" village called Oottapilla Goodie; to the south-west 
" of which tbere is a hill, where the Elixir of Immor­

H tality is to be found j principal people from the 

" north and soutb come there, and make the philoso­
" pher's stone, and depart. At Oopala Goody, Raram 

" Shachama Rauze, the Dewaun of the Rajah Tonde­
"maun, resides: if you will wait on him, you will 
" understand the story of the hill. The end will be 

"accomplished. Shachama Rauze's son-in-law, Ner­
" rioor Rauze, is come about the same business to my 
« house; if you let him understand this circumstance 

"(he is a patient man, of conciliation and inteIli­

" genee), through his means all your business will 
II prosper. This you must understaad. stay near that 
" hill; those who come there you must see, and the 

" busine416 in your heart will be accomplished." 

.. It WIll addreued to a TlAdal at Pallameottah, aad &iglItld by a butler of 
LoNW. C. BeMinck' .. 

PAu. 18 ....... V'. Depoaitiona Nos. X. and Xl. The iaeeadlary (whom 
_ styled the VeIIoN Faoqueeto) WaD abaeonded on ,he 19tJa NoveJnber_ 
Travancore, met Aga Nuzzer Ally, son-in-law to tb.e p~_ Ambuaador. 



150 

PARA. 19.-Part of another Letter was written in 

inverted Malabar characters, which have not yet been 

decypbered. 

I wrote this day a short Letter to you, and another 

to Colonel Agnew, detailing circumstances as well as 

I could; and we determined to concentrate our force, 

by confining all the Native Officers in two rooms in 

the General Stores. Matters continued in this state, 

until your arrival on the mowing of the 21st. 

Continual business has prevented my being sooner 

able to make this Heport j whicr. I trust willlJe corro­

borated by the general voice of those uy whom I have 

been so ably snpported. 

I have omitted to mention Mr. Stratton's Carnatic 

Peons, a party of whom came in tile first day, and 

who were increased the second day to about 200, and 

whom I found most useful and vigilant in every post 

where I stationed them. They still occupy half of 

the safeguards 011 the ramparts. 

_ith a Mr. Fisher, travelling from fl , ~ southward towards l\1ddrns ; he 
immediately asked the "'ga to abbbt him to kill Mr. Fisher; and on his 
refusal, the Facqueer abused him, snying he was joined to the "iJlanou8 
English ;-tbat he bimself was a Prophet of God, come into tbis country to 
sbave 10,000. The Aga kicked him out of tl,C choultry before Mr. Fisher's 
fnce. 

PARA. 19.-This Letter was l'llrtly dccyphcrcd afterwards, by reversing it 
before a looking glass-it was from Travancore (where Ramalingam then 
was) to Ramalingam's brotht'r-in-law at PalJamcottab, mentioning powder 
a.d jlints, but was too intricate to be fully understood, or even read, by al\ 
tbe people we employed. 
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PA.RA.. !o.-After the Native Officers were removed 

from my house to the General Stores, they as:.ured 

Captains Wilson and Pepper and myself, that they 

were ready to embrace our religion, in the following 

terms-H Toomareh zaut mee meeljunna11, Toomareh 

" Meezub mee Milnah," &c. and to wear topics and 

crosses, to convince us of their fidelity! ! ! 

PAR \. 2) .-Another circumstance served much to 

corroborate the Evidence of a plot among tbe Moor­

men of the Corps-that the only Native Officers* 

detached (excepting oue, to Cvlcaud, Captain 'Vilson's 

station, who was on bad ter'uiOl with the rest), were on 

some pretext or other aU Malabars, &c. and among 

twenty present, only one was not a Mussulm311. 

Notc to PARA. 20, added subscquently in September 1807, 011 boarn the 
Indus. 

"Toom8ureh Muzub mec Mlinl'lwo I1llUlee hci" 
" TOOluaurch .laut mac MltllUgch" 

" Toomaureh Topccah Pecnnekoo tlar hoi, Toomaurch 
" Khaunnah, Khaunekoo, Bhee, lauzec hye SJhih-" 

Or, in the Hindoobtanny chuactcr, as near a. I can recollect, 

~ 1.. ~ ~~ ~)i & (,!}~Jb ~~,S' ,J-l" ~~ ~..:.." y).i 
-k&~ .-

Let any man who understands Hiru\oostanny, and the intolerant tcnets ofthc 
Mussulman faith, decide on the innocence of thc.e nmeteen bigottcd Moor­
men. 

• We have twenty-four Native Officcrs. 
PARA. 21 -There wert' in the Corps (out of twenty-four Native Officers) 

20 Mussulmen; the Havildar Major, drill and plummet Huvildars, all Mus­
sulmen; 50 Havildars, 40 Naigues, and ahout 450 privates, also Mussulmen ; 
and the Native Officers had perhaps 100 relations in this numher.-Total 5G3. 

The other castes were as follows 4 Native Officers (only Jcmadars) ; 
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l' ARA. 22.-Considering the general rumour of dis­
affection, the certain knowledge of Tachcer incen­

diaries from Vellore, Paonab, and Hyderabad, having 

been in the Fort, togetber with the recent occurrences 

at Nundydroog and Bangalore, added to a situation 
80 remote from European succour; I trust tbat, under 

such circumstances (and tbose above detailed), my 
conduct, and the precautionary steps that bave 'een 

taken, may be jUitified, both in your opinion, and that 

of Government and the Commander-in-Chief. 
(Signed) J. WELsn, 

Pallamcottah, MoJur commandIng lot nat 
ant Rei. !IIol,ve Infantry. 

251h November, 1806. 

P. S.-I have to apologize for many blots and 
scratches, which in my hurry have been unavoidable. 

APPENDIX, N°· I. 

DISTRICT ORDER. 

23rd July. 1806. 

THE Officer Commanding the 1st Battalion 3rd 

Regiment, will forthwitb assemble a Committee, of 

12 Havildars; 20 Naignes, and 4,)0 privates; many of which were detached. 
-Total 486. 

Lieutenant Hill, the late .A.djutant, had been 80 very ill, that he was 
unable to attend to any thing. The Roster for duty and detachment among 
the Natives of the Corps, was kept by Subadar Sheik Hyder and the Havildar 
Maior, the Jemadar Adjutant hi!ing also sick in hospital Cor several months 
before. 



which he will be President, consisting of aU European 

Officers present, to determine, after examination into 

the character and connexions of the drafts lately re­

ceived from the 6th Extra Battalion, on the indivi­

duals whom (under existing circumstances) it becomes 

urgently expedient to disarm, and provisionally to 

dismis~ from the Service, until higher authority can 

be Obtained. 

The men to be discharged, are to be directed im­

mediately to quit the Garrison, under an assurance 

that their arrears of pay and regular certificates will 

be delivered to them as early as possible. 

Captain Webh will direct all the Commissioned 

Native Officers to attend the Committee, as delibe­

rative Members. 
(Signed) 

(PRIVATE). 

:My DEAR SlR, 

ALEX. D)CR, 
Lieutenant-Colonel. 

From Courtallum. 

I AM glad to hear you are all 

right at Pallamcottah, and hope we shall soon have 

more pleasant accounts from the Northward, of the 

state of the public feelings regarding the Native Troops. 

I think it very advisable that you should use every 

means to ascertain the temper of your people at this 

crisis; but without showing, or giving cause to suspect, 

any distrust on your part. I would not rely upon tbe 

M 
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'irili'ftHmntt '01 yoUr bWh most confidtmthtl Native (Jffi­
~ttts:..2hmtr -th&rtl, 'dtrll consult them; but endea\l'bl1r, 

'ttir6tJg'b other cll'Anhels, 'to Jeamlif'thdr statf!tn'enfs 'a:te 

-ebrteet, 'and what'tPtey tl,emselt1es may nave privately 
'ltdtl, 'or m.ay>b,,·'Supposed inclined Ito (10, ·tf fhe flame 

'1thddltl ~1>relid unhttppily wider. 
1: Iwould nope much from ttre rescinding of the 

General Order. But if their principles are sapped by 
-tteals6n, fanaticiSm, or bribery, the hope will be vain, 

ttlhd it 'Will be well to knCIW even the worst. Keep 

ithfq "1)ltgl%tioh to 'Y'OUrsplf, fur I have no valid grounds 

for suspicion. 
Yours truly, 

25th July. 
(Signed) ALEX. IlYeR. 

GARRISON ORl)EHS. 

4th August, 1806. 

LIEU l'ENANT-COLONBL DYeR has just heard with 

lthel'gftlatest suti>rise, that a report has been circulated 

~ong 'the ITtOopS in this Garrison, respecting the 
~arch of some I Companies of Europeans for Pallam-

e.ntab, in order'to eIlh'y into effect certain regl1tations 
't$6ut the'dress, <&c. &c. of the Native 'Troops. He 

~stens therefu~ to 'as~re the OfIicers 1md' Sepoys 

of ' die 1st Battali~n 'Srd Regiment, flprJn 'his word of 

'MlnOtt1"«S'ia 'Soltlier, 1fhat fhis report iswholly-gromtdkss, 


